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BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Strategic Report

Principal Activity - A
The BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited Group (“the Group”) owns and operates “last mile” utility distribution systems in

locations throughout mainland UK, providing essential services to both residential and commercial premises. The business.

operates in gas, electricity, fibre, water and waste water, district energy, and dorestic smart metering sectors, which are
regulated by Ofgem (gas.and.electricity), Ofcom (fibre)-and Ofwat (water and waste water).

Business Model

The Group competes against other infrastructure providers, including regional utility incumbents, to provide “last. mile”
utility network solutions to all types of new build developments. Once completed, the Group expects to own and operate
these networks in‘perpetuity. The regulated entities owning and operating the utility assets are known as:

. Gas - Independent Gas Transporter (IGT) )

. Electricity — Independént Distribution Network Operator (fIDN'O)

. Water — Néw Appointment and Variations (NAV)

For the provision of its distribution networks and infrastructure, the Group charges.the gas, electricity and water suppliers a
regulated use-of-system tariff.

The: Group 'has- also developed similar business models-in the provision of fibre optic: commuriications hetworks, district
heating networks, and domestic smart metering.

Financing

The Group has £1,711.1m of long-term Senior Notes issued in 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2018 and 2020 which have an
investment grade credit rating of Baa2 from Moody’s Investor Services. The Group’s éxisting short-term facilities totalling
£350m expire on 18 September 2024.

Review of performance during the year to 31 December 2021

Key Performance Indicators

Year ended - Year ended

31/12/21 31/12/20

Revenue (GBP ‘000) : 412,487 37?'780
Adjusted EBITDA* (GBP ‘000) . 265,400 261,752
FFO2(GBP ‘000j) 204,345 201,524
AFFO? (GBP ‘000) . ) 192,715 195,979
Cumulative Connections {No. of connections) 2,534,987 2,361,294

‘1 Adjusted EBITDA {Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) is calculated as-Operating Profit addirig

back depreciation, amortisation, bad.debt expense, gains or losses on disposal of fixed assets or subsidiaries and share:based *

pay ‘expense.

2 FFO (Funds from Operations) is calculated as EBITDA less interest expense and tax paid or received,

3 AFFO (Adjusted Funds from Operations) is calculated as FFO less maintenance capital expenditure.

Note —EBITDA, FFO and AFFQ are not defined undef IFRS and may not be comparable to other-organisations.

Revenue has increased in the year driven by a greater number of connections in place throughout the year with increased
¢onstruction activity over 2020, which was suppressed due to COVID 19. This is also reflected In key financial KPis of EBITDA
and FFO which show an improvement in performance of the group compared to both the prior year and the detailed budget
for the year. However, AFFO has decreased due to an increase in maintenance capital expenditure, compared to prioryear.

During the year the Group disposed of its sharefiolding ih Smart. Meter Assets 1 Ltd. Total consideration received on the
disposal was £589,048,000 resultirig in a gain of £139,808,000. Further detail on the disposal can be seen in note 29 of the
financial statements.

At the year-end the Group had net assets of £1,185,505,000 (2020: £1,363,827,000).
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BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited

Strategic Report (continued) -

Future Prospects

A key driver for the futuré growth of the Group is the general health of the UK residential housing market. As atthe end of
2021, the Group had a.contracted forward ordér book to complete approximately 1,391,000 connections across all of its
services over the next 5-10 years, up from approximately 1,241,000 connections as at the end of 2020. Furthermore, any
favourable improvement in general economic conditions in the UK that improves the level of enquiries from house builders
is generally positive for the Group’s businesses.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the group are:

Regulatory

The Group opérates in stable and transparent regulated utility markets in the UK. The Group is not aware of any significant

propased changes Impacting the existinig regulatory frameworks In which it operates. Any such change could have either a

positive or negative impact on our future business préspects. The Group has carried on investing in both regulated and non- .

regulated markets, diversifying its regulatory risk.

Health, Safety and Environmental )
The Group operates a comprehensive Health, Safety and Environmental framework to ensure that, as far as possible, it

eliminates risk to its employees, customers, members of the public and the environment. The Group has an excellent track .

record in this regard and has culturally aligned itself to improve continually its performance in this area.

Liquidity and Interest Rates

Theé Group has a policy of seeking to have a number of sources of funds and financial instruments at any given time to meet
its liquidity needs, as wéll as maintaining a balanced maturity profile to minimise, as far as possible, peaked repayments and
refinancing risk. Debt facilities are arranged with appropriate financial and operating covenants, ensuring that management
has the necessary flexibility in the operation of its business.

The majority of the Group’s existing debt has an unexpired term exceeding 9 years and is subject to a fixed interest rate.

Cash flow risk
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain exposures to fluctuations in interest rates, inflation rates
and exchange rates. The Group does not hold any speculative financial instruments.

Credit risk

Whilst the Group Is dependent on a number of large customers, the credit risk from the fallure of those customers is limited
by regulatory regimes. The Group takes appropriate measures to reduce credit risk to a manageable level and has strict
procedures to manage credit risk relating to trade receivables.

coviD-19

The Directors have considered the expected impact of COVID-19 on future periods. As an intermediate holding company
within the BUUK Group, the potential impact of COVID-19 on the Company is considered the same as for the Group as a
whole.

As at the date of the approval of this report the Group had £350m of undrawn committed facilities, of which £159.6im is
available for general corporate purposes and £190.4m is linked to future capital expenditure. This availability of facilities
and the performance of the Group in 2021, combined with the nature of the Group’s activities, as discussed below, has led
the Directors to the conclusion that it is unlikely the Group would be unable to meet its obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s business model and financing structure are resilient and there is a strong order book in place for the provision of
new connections in the future.

The Group’s core business activity is the ownership and operation of Infrastructure assets, supplying essential services of
gas, electricity, water, fibre, waste water and district heat. The transportation revenues from this activity are highly stable
and predictable and are currently underpinned by-a supportive regulatory framework. These revenues are expected to
femain stable and continue to generate positive cash flows. This has been demonstrated by the Group's performance
during 2021, which has seen the Group miaintain a strong EBITDA position and remain cash generative despite the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic.




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Additionally, BUUK undertakes the construction of new infrastructure assets to be owned and operated by the Group.
Construction activity levels were reduced at the start of the pandemic due to the suspension of works by some
housebuilders on some new housing sites, however this has steadily recovered, with new connections now close to pre-
COVID levels. As construction levels continue to increase the Directors are committed to ensuring BUUK retains the
resources necessary to meet this demand, implementing procedures and goliciés to make it practical and safe to do so.

Statement by the Diréctors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) Companies Act 2006

The Board of Directors are. presented with and review a wide range of papers relating to different stakeholders. The papers
are discussed at Board meetings and form the basis by which policies and actions of the business are developed and, through
this process, the Board have identified the key stakeholders. The Board consider that, both individually and together, they
have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit
of its members as a whole in the decisions taken during the year and, in doing so, have had regard to the stakeholders and
matters set out in s172(1) (a-f) of the Companies Act 2006.

The Board of Directors” intention is to behave responsibly and to ensure that management operate the business in a
responsible manner to rhaintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct. The Board of Directors also recognise
the impoftance of behaving fairly between the members of the company.

The Board of Directors’ aim to create a balance between the development of opportunities with our customers, stimulating
and rewarding our staff, working with and supporting our-local communities, sustaining the environment in which we
operate, interact with and comply with policies of the relevant regulators and engage in positive relationships with leriders.
The following disclosures describé how the Board of Directors has had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) (a-f) in
respect of the Group's stakeholders and forms the Directors’ Statement required under Section 414CZA of The Companies
Act 2006.

CoviD-19

The Board of directors have considered the needs of the different stakeholders of the Group and have balanced these in
their actions to mitigate the impact of COVID-19:

. A range of measures continue to be provided to support employees in continting to work in a safe and effective
manner. This includes greater support for remote working, but also investment in safety equipment in office
locations and the implementation of social distancing measures to allow employees to work safely in the office
enviroriment and continue to offer high quality support to customers

. Continued to support the mental health of employees through the provisioh of anemployee assistance programme

. The Group_has supported the local commurity and worked with the local surgery to provide a location to be used
for flu vaccinations, supporting over 10,000 vaccines in 2021.

COVID-19 has presented a unique challenge to many businesses and the Group has carefully considered whether the
following policies remain appropriate. Where they have not, due to social distancing measures and safety concerns, they
have been temporarily suspended or alternatives found if possible. As the Group intends to continue with these policies once
it'is appropriate to do so, the policjes continue to be disclosed below.

Further information on the risks presented by COViD-19 and.the considerations on going concern can be seenin the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic Report and the Going Concern section of Note 2.

SIPage




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Statement by the Directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) Companies Act 2006
(continued)

Engagement with Employees

‘We aim to create, develop and retain highly motivatéd people and teams who are equipped with the necessary
competencies and skills to perform highly and who demonstrate our core values.

We support and engage with our people in a range of ways:

Stimulating positive and responsive communication

. Company news is always available to employees through the Company'’s intranet _

. Conduct quarterly cascade team briefings to keep employees appraised of business performance and industry
changes followed by Q&A opportunities

. Regularly circulate internal magazines and articles,

. Provide a platform where the business can pose challenges to employees for ideas and where employees can also
post other ideas or questions

. Conduct annual face to face Directors presentations to encourage two-way communication

Our ongoing commitment to the Great Place to Work® scherne also ensures we remain focused on the business benefits of
high employee engagement, resulting in our business being an employer of choice for both existing and new colleagues.

Erigagement is measured by a yearly employee survey and Culture Audit. The feedback we receive from employees is where

we focus our attention to improve working practices for our colleagues.- We have ranked as one of the UK’s Best

Workplaces™ for four consecutive years and in-2021 we have ranked in the UK’s Best Workplaces™ for Women.

As a result of listening to our employees we have implemented the following initiatives:

. Enhanced Maternity, Paternity and Adoption Leave

. Dedicated Wellbeing Programme

. Volunteering Programme - Providing leave for colleagues to help with the local community or charities

. Science, Technology, Engineering & Maths (STEM) Programme - Building the bridge between education and
employment ' '

. Increased employee recognition for outstanding work linked to our Core values

. Discounted FitBits to encourage colleagues to be more active

. Aspiring Managers Programme

. Leadership & Management Programme

The feedback loop created by the communication has:led to the development and enhancement of policies which enhance
the working environment and benefits employees receive.

Supporting appropriate learning and development opportunities

. Offer a dual utility engineering apprenticeship scheme
. Offer a Graduate Development Programme .
. Annual process to identify training needs backed by Investment in development for staff

Supporting our staff to realise their full potential

. Offer a flexible employee bienefits scheme

. Employee assistance programmes including stress counselling and medical information services

. Dedicated Health and Wellbeing Committee established

D Offer.regular employee social events )

. Maintaining a safe, healthy and sustainable working environment for our staff, those we work for and for the
general public

. Provide a platform for staff to commit to building a positive safety culture irrespective of role or responsibility

6|Page




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Statement by the Directors in performance of their statutory duties in acéordance with $172(1) Companies Act 2006
(continued)

Equial opportunities

A fair and equal opportunities culture is operated throughout the Group. Employment opportunities, whether in the
recruitment, training or promotion of employees, are granted on merit irrespective of race, colour, religion, national origin,
age, gender, disability or sexual orientation.

Full consideration and equal opportunities are given to employment applications from disabled persons with due regard to
the requirements of the job. Where existing employees become disabled every effort is made to provide opportunities for
continued employment within the Group supported with training and development as appropriate.

Business Relationships

We recognise the importance of engaging with the Group'’s suppliers and customers ‘and the need to foster relationships
with them.

Customers

. Customer satisfaction is closely monitored via both the Net Promoter Score and Customer Effort Score frameworks
and results are used to drive process and performance improvements

. Customer feedback is reviewed by Senior Manag’em_ent regularly ahd is used to continuously improve the business,

an example being developing the way in which work is requested by our developer customers to ensuie site visits
are not aborted

Suppliers

. Corporate social responsibility is a key selection and approval criteria for'suppliers

. Group corporate social responsibility requirements.are communicated to all suppliers and are accessible ori our
" websites

. Collaborative working with suppliers is critical to the business, an example being the way a key supplier delivers

stock to sites has been enhanced and automated to ensure stock is available at critical fimes.
Regulators

We have a positive relationship with our regulators and are focused on maintaining this and ensuring we act in a way which
is open and transparent. We regularly liaise with our regulators at different levels and through a variety of “touch points”
with regulatory and government departments to ensure the business evolves alongside any regulatory changes. Our
engagement includes:

. Actively participating in strategic regulatory reviews through industry working groups, consultation responses and
one to one meetings;
. ~ Engaging with government departments and regulators on a one to one basis and through broader industry groups
to promote industry change; ’ :
. Responding to regulatory consultations and requests for information;
. Meeting with regulators to promote industry change or to develop solutions to potential concerns;
o Hosting visits to our offices or to sites where we operate to demonstrate how our business model of operating in

a multi utility world brings value to customers.

The Board. receive regular updates on régulatory interaction and are committed to complying with all relevant regulatory
requirements and continue to closely monitor the status of our regulatory relationships, enhancing engagement across key
regulatory changes.




BUUK Infrastructure No‘2 Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Statemeént by the Directors in performance of thelr statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) Companies Act.2006
(continued)

Lenders

We actively engage with banks.and qther Jenders to foster a strong rélationship: The Board proactively ensures compliance’

wiith all borrowing covenants and has an open dialogue with lenders to manage the finaricing needs of the business.

. Proposals are prépared and reviewed with our lenders for all significant decisions pertinent to those lenders
. Lenders are kept up to date by sharing quarterly accounts and budget information

Communities arid Environment
BUUK has been re_cqgriised as the ovérill asset séctor leader for its superclass-in the 2021 GRESB Infrastructure Assessment,
achieving a score of 90% and a 5 star rating, The GRESB is the leading environmental, social and governance benchmark for

retail and infrastructure investments across-the world.

BUUK recognises the impacts that it has oni the community and the environment and seeks to make a pbsit'ivedﬁference in
the places wheére we operate.

. Engage in community projects which involve employees working in and amongst the local community

. Actively make available work experience opportunities for 16 to 18 year old students V

. Provision 6f volunteeririg leave to support local community projects. Following the launch'in Decémber 2021, 89
employees have become volunteers and 85 missions have been ¢completed.

. Integration of Climate Change Adaptation

. Increasing awareness of environmental issues

. Drive to eliminate single use plastics in our supply chain, achieving c. 50 tonnes reduction against our 2019 baseline.

o Waste elimination programmes at ali sites; achieved 67% avoidance of general waste sent.to.landfill in 2021.

. Solar panels instalied at head office

. Maintained registration of ISO 14001 environmiental accreditation

. Partnership with an IT provider to collect end of life IT assets for reuse or recycling, with 435 items being resold to
be used again and 869 items.recycled.

. The Group expects all employees and its suppliers to work to the Group'’s own policies and pfocedures, whichas a

finimum standard requires compliance with any relevant international and national legal or regulatory framework -

8|Page




BUUK Irifrastructure No 2 Limited
Strategic Report {continued)

Statement by the Directors in perforinance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) Companies Act 2006
(continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR)

BUUK has appointed Carbon Footprint Ltd, a leading carbon and energy manageniént company, to independently assess its
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions in accordarice with the UK Governiment's ‘Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including.
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Guidance”.

The GHG emissions have beeri assessed following the ISO 14064-1:2018 standard and has used the 2021 emission conversion
factors published by Department for Environment, Food and Rurai Affairs (Defra) and the Departiment for Business, Energy
& Industrial Strategy (BEIS). The assessment follows the location-based approach for assessing Scope 2 emissions from
electricity usage. The financial control approach has been used.

The table below summarises the GHG emissions for reporting year: 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. As a business we
have been assessing our carbon emissions since 1 January 2020 and have provided the baseline year assessment results for

comparison.

Scope Activity 2020 Location 2021 Location 2021 Market

based (tCO2e)* based (tCO2e) based (tCO2e)

Scope 1 Site gas 3,592.78 9,117.40 9,117.40
Van travel and distribution 3,837.00 3,397.50 3,397.50

Company car travel 1,589.45 1,343.37 1,343.37

Refrigerants n/a 29.33 29.33

Scope 1 Sub total 9,019.23 13,887.60 13,887.60
Scope 2 Electricity generation 507.95 640.47 223.70
Scope 2 Sub total 507.95 640.47 223.70
Scope 3 Well to tank 1,854.11 2,758.52 2,576.99
Employee-owned travel (grey fleet) 34.42 42.47 42.47

Electricity transmission & distribution 43.68 56.68 19.80

Scope 3 Sub total 1,932.21 2,857.67 2,639.26
Total tonnes of CO2e 11,459.39 17,385.74 16,750.56'
Tonnes of CO2e per employee 13.04 992 9.56
Tonnes of CO2e per £M turnover 30.18 43.07 41.50
Total energy consumption (kWh)** 44,432,049.85 66,975,682.40 66,975,682.40

“*The baseline 'year emissions (2020} have been recalculated to include emissions associated with site energy usage at Metropolitan units,
[fibre-cabinet, woste and waste water, pump stations 6 & 7 and Little Station site, for miore accurate comparison.
**Total energy consumption includes UK electricity, UK site gas, company owned vehicles and employee owned vehicles (grey fleet}

The increase in location based carbon footprint compared to the baseline year is predominantly due to a rise in emissions
from natural gas consumption at our sites. This is largely due to significant growth of business activity within our
Metropolitan Heat business, with new Energy Centres coming on stream, alongside a full year’s operation to report on in
respect of others. The increase is further driven by our acquisition of Express Utilities Holdings in February 2020 and Passiv
UK Limited in April 2021.

Scope 1 gas consumption Energy Centres has increased from 19,433,408 kWh in 2020 to 50,212,559 kWh in 2021, resulting
in an Increase in Scope 2 electricity consumption and resultant emissions.

A number of key actions have been taken during the year to improve energy efficiency. These include tangible changes, such
as the installation of electric vehicle charging points, inclusion of electric vehicles in our fléet policy ard solar panels at our
head office site; alongside regular engagement and education of employees on energy saving options, examples of which
including the benefits of electric vehicles and reducing single use plastics at home and in our supply chain.

9|Page



BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Strategic Report {continued)
Thé Future of Heat

UK Goveriiment issued the Heat and Building Strategy (HABS) in October 2021, which sets 6ut how the UK will decarbonise

xnstung homés, as part of the path'to achieve net zero by 2050. This includes the scaling up of triils to prodiice hydrogen
along with use of the existing gas hetwork.. HABS also covers the potential deployment of hybrid heat puimps in homes
connected to the'gasgrid. Early deployment of hybnd heat pumps would predoininantly be expected.to be in combination
with natural ¢ gas bollers. In the longer-term hydrogen could displace this fossi! fuel use. Governmentiis progressing trials for
both hydrogen and hybrid heat puips to help determine the strategy for energy- transformation, this includes the
deployment of hybrid heat pumps,in the Government’s Electrification of Heat trial.

The UK Hydrogen Strategy published'in August 2021 further sets 0t the UK Government's, comprehensive-approach to
growinga UK hydrogen economy, inciuding-usé.of the existing gas natwork. Taking this into consideration along with the
published HABS, BUUK expect its existing gas infrastructure assets.to continue to be an essential part: of the supply of heat
for decades to come.

@\ § report was apprg

D Corhey \
Diregtor

by the Board 6n:30 March 2022 and signed on its behalf.
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BUUK: Infrastructure No 2 Limited

Registered number: 08246443
Directors' Report

The Directors present their annual report'and audited financial statemerits for the Group and Company for the year ended

31 December 2021.

Information .

BUUK Infrastructure Neo 2 Limited is a private. Company limited by shares incorporated in the United ‘Kingdom' under the
‘Companles Act 2006 and registered in Englarid and Wales, fegistration number 08246443. The Company’s registered address
is Synergy House, Woolpit Business Park, Woolpit, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP30-9UP. .

Details of the Group’s future developments, equal oppoftunities, employee engagement, business relationships and

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) can be found in the Strateégic Report.

Results and dividends )
The results for the year are shown in the Consolidated Income Statement oh page 16. The profit for the year, after taxation,
amounted to £139.8m (2020: £44.1m).

During the year interim dividends were approved and paid of £330.0m (2020: £20.0m). The Directors do not propose the
payment of a final dividend (2020: £nil).

Directors
The Directors who served dufing the year and to the date of this report; unless otherwise stated, are as follows:

D Corney

C Linsdell

G Montesi

P Sim

C Teskey (resigned 12 January 2022)

Directors' responsibilities statement
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable’
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for-each financial year. Under that law the difectors are
required to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the United Kingdom. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements. unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs.of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that period. in preparing these financial statements, International ‘Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

«  properly select and apply accounting policies;

«  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

»  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are irisufficient to énable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance; and

« make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate-accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and. disclose with. reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statemenits comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevéntion and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

11|Page




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited

Directors' Report (continued)

Going Concern

The Directors have a réasonable expectation that the Company-has adequate resources to continue to adopt the gomg
concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements. Further details regarding the adopt:on of the going
concern basis can be found in Noté 2 of the finaricial statements.

On the basis of the financing facilities available together with the business plans which confirm the adequacy of the current
facilities for a period of at least the next 12 months, and which support the proposed funding strategy in the longer term,
the Directors have a reasonablé expectation that the Group. has adequate resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Directors' indemnities

Qualifying third party indefnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were in force during the
year for the benefit of the then Directors and, as at thé date of this report, remain in fofce for the benefit of the current
Directors in relation to certain losses'and liabilities which they may incur in connection w1th their duties, powers or office.
Directors' statement as to disclosure of information to auditor

Thé Directors confirm that, so far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware, and the Directors have taken all the stéps that they cught to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information:
This confirmation is'given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Auditor

Deloitte LLP has expressed its WIiIingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Financial risk management

Details of the Group’s-financial risk management objectives ‘and‘polic'ies can be found in note 19 of the financial statements.

This report was approved by the Board-on 30 March 2022 and signed on its behalf.

D Corngy
Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the meémbers of BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

¢ the financial statements of BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Lirnited {the ‘parent.company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’)
give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and
of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

o thé group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted

" international accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (JASB);

»  the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

e the financial statements have been prepared if accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise: ;
*»  the consolidated income statement; ;
e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

s the consolidated and parent company statements of financial position;
e the consolidated and parent cormpany statements of changes in equity;
e the consolidated and parent cash flow statements; and

e therelated notes 1 to 31.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied.in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
adoptéd international accounting standards and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, inciuding the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis-of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included our-assessment of the entity’s:

financing facilities including nature of facilities, repayment terms and covenants

linkage to business model and medium-term risks

assumptions used in the forecasts

amount of headroom in the forecasts (cash and covenants)

sensitivity analysis

e  sophistication of the model used to prepare the forecasts, testing of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and our
assessment of the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent company'’s ability to continue as 2
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going cancein are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited {continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, othér than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, excépt to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
t6 determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in thé financial staterents themselves. [f, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsiblilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair-view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going coricern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations,. or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethér the financial statements as.a whole are.free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemerits can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economiic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
‘extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is détailed below.

We ¢onsidered the nature of the group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group’s documentation of
their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of
management about their own idéntification and assessment of the risks of irregularities

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, and identified the key

laws and regulations that: :

¢ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These
included UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and

¢ do not have a direct effect o the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the group’s
ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included regulatory licenses for-parts of the group’s business
including Ofgem, Ofcom and Ofwat,

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists such as tax and T specialists
regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might
occur in the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to thé members of BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited (continued)

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud.in the presumed significant risk of fraud
in revenue recognition, focusing specifically on connections revenue being incorrectly recorded due to management’
fhanipulation by adding fictitious customers, or adjusting total contributions. Our specific procedures performed to
address this risk included testing the design, impleméntatién and operatlng effectiveness of the controls around
connections frevenue. Sampling of, and agreeing projects, to a signed acceptance of quote and (if applicable) variation, E
recalcultaion of the revenue to be recognised based on the audited costs incurred and audited developer contribution.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK}, we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk-of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
-appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
uhusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud;

e enquiring of management and external legal counsel toncerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and |
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

¢ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing correspondence with HMRC:

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in thé course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained
if the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’
report.

Matters 6n which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters If, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

s the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit:

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Lee Welham FCA] (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Cambridge, United Kingdom

31 March 2022
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‘BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Corisolidated Income Statement
‘for the year ended! 31 Décémber 2021

Continuing operations
Revenue

Costof sales

Gross profit

Administrative (expense)/ihco'me
Amortisation and depreciation
Other operating expenses

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Operating profit

Net finanée costs

Profit before tax

Tax

Profit for the year attributable to the owners-of the parent

Notes

29

Year eénded Year ended
31 December 31 Decernber
2021 2020.

£'000 £'000
412,487 379,780
(105;844) {91,499)
306.643 288,281
(98,803) {107,658)
(53,124) (42,111)
139,983. -
294,699 138,512
(63,370) (57,950)
231,329 80,562
(91,497) (36,437)
139,832 44,125
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BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Consolidated Statement of Comprehénsive Income
for thé yedr-ended 31 December 2021,

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subseqtiéntly to-profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of Infrastructure assets

Income tax relating to items that will not.be reélassified subsequently

itenis that may. be reclassified subsequently to profit-of loss:

Cash flow hedges:
-Amounts reclassified to profit and loss in relation to exchange différences

(Loss)/gain on hedging instrumeénts designated asa cash flow hedge
Reclassification adjustments for amounts recognised in profit of loss
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified subsequently

Other comprehensive incofe for the year, nét of income tax

Total Comprehensive Income for: the year attributable to the.owners of the
parent

Notes: ‘Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

.139,832 44,125

12 - 99,132 162,315

8: (87,291) {51,569)
11,841 110,746 ;

19 (2,235) 6,862

19 2,845 (2,425)

{623) (624)

8 (194) (708)

(207) 3,105

11,634 113,851

151,466 157,976
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BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limitéd

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 Decembier 2021

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Propérty, plant and equipient
Derivative financial Instruments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Tradeand other receivables
Cash’and bank balances

Total assets’

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Deferred income

‘Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred income )
Derivative fihancial instruments
Déeferred-tax liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Mergerreserve
Convertible loan notes -
Revaluation reserve
Cash flow he‘dg’é'l‘réServe

Retained earnings

Total equityattributable to Gwiners of the parent

Naotes

10
12
19

15

14
15

16
30
18

17
30
18
19
16

21
21
i7
2
21

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£000 £000
24,180 77,608
31,546 33,298 -
3,547,090 3,727,558
22,509 19,664
38,621 31,555
3,663,946 3,839,683
3,247 1,509
148,388 120,640
31,496 5,359
183,131 127,508
3,847,077 3,967,191
(156,275) (142,987)
(661) (912)
(78,239) (82,027)
(235,175). (230,926)
(1,725,830) (1,802,717)
(619) (1,279)
(65,895) (40,767)
- (50,754)
(634,053) (476,921)
2,426,397} (2,372,438)
(2,661,572) (2,603,364)
1,185,505 1,363,827
235,273 235,273
(46,940) (46,940)
158,539’ 158,539
825,980 941,279
3,037 3,244.
9,616 72,432
1,185,505 1,363,827

The financial statements of BUUK Infrastructure No-2 Limited (fegistered number' 08246443) were approved by the board
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BUUK Infrastriicture No 2 Limited
Company Statenient of Financial Position
as at 31.December-2021

Non-current assets
Investments

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Tradé and other receivables

Arhounts receivable from group undertakings:
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade.and other payables

Non-current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax liabilities

Amounts payable to group undertakings
Borrowings

Total fiabilities
Net assets
Equity

Share capital

Convertible loan notes

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Notes

11
15

15
15

16

19
16
16
17

21
17

31 Pecember

31 Decembéer”

2021 2020
£'000 £000
6,599 6,569

1,846,761 1,860,593
17;132 5,954
326,050 430,681
3 3
343,185 436,638
2,189,946 2,297,231
{1,148) (1,371)
{1,148) (1,371)
- (50,754)
(459) {479)
(1,711,140) (1,711,140)
- (78,756)
(1,711,599) (1,841,129)
(1,712,747 (1,842,500)
477,199 454,731
235,273 235,273
158,539 158,539
83,387 60,919
477,199 454,731

The corripany reported a profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 of £352,468,000 (2020: £36i802,000).'The Cofnpany
has no items of comprehensive income other than the profit for the financial year.

Director

¢ial statements of BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Lifited (registered number 08246443) were approved by the board




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Balance at 1 Janhuary 2020

profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year,
‘nét of incomie tax.

Reclassification adjustments for amounts
recognised in profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

Payment of dividends (note 20)
Movement in Share-based payments reserve
Balance.at 31 December 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year,
riet.of income tax

Reclassification adjustments for amounts
recognised in profit or loss:

Total compréhensive income for thé year

Paymient of dividends (note 20)

Transfer.of revaluation reserve on disposal of
subsidiary

Movement in Share-based payments reserve:

Balance at 31 Deceimber 2021

. Lo L .Cash flow Retained
Share Merger c°"."e-,",| b.l € Revah{a tion hedge eardings/  Total Equity
capital reseérve loan notes reserve. . B
reserve (deficit)

£'000 E'000° £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000°
235,273 {46,940) 158,539 830,533 139 48,118 1,225,662
. - - - - 44,125 44,125

B - - 110,746 3,729 -~ 114,475
- - - - (624) - (624)

- - - 110,746 3,105 44,125 157,976

} ; . . - (20,000) (20,000)

- - - - - 189 189
235,273 {46,940) 158,539 941,279 3,244 72,432 1,363,827
_ - - - - 139,832 139,832

- - - 11,841 416 - 12,257

R - - - (623) - (623)

- - - 11,841 (207) 139,832 151,466

. . N - - {330,000)  (330,000)

- - - {127,140 - 127,140, -

- - - - - 212 212
235,273 {46,940) 158,539 825,980 3,037 9,616 1,185,505
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BUUK Infrastructure No'2 Limited
:Conmpany Statemént of Chianges in Equity
For the year.ended 31 December 2021

Balance at 1 January 2020°

Profit for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Paymient of dividends {note 20}
Balante at-31 Decembier 2020

Profit for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the yéar

‘Payrment of dividends {note 20)

Balance at 31 Décember 2021

Share Convertible Retained Total Equity
capital loan notés -.earnings

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

235,273 158,539 44,117 437,929

- - 36,802 36,802

- - 36,802 36,802

- - {20,000) (20,000)

235,273 158,539 60,919 454,731

- - 352,468 352,468

R - 352,468 352,468

- - {330,000) (330,000}

235,273 158,539 83,387 477,199

The Company hds taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Cdmpanies Act 2006 and has not présented its

own Income:Statement in these financial statements.
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BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

fo the year endéd 31 Decembir 2021

Cash flows from operating activiti
Profit for-the year
Adjustments for:

es

Income tax expense recognised in profit of loss
Finance costs recognised iit profit.or loss

Gaih on disposal of subsidiary

Loss on disposal of property, plant-and eguipment
Net (gains)/losses arising on financial instrumenits
designated as fair value through profit and loss

Depretiation and amortisation of non-current'assets

Operating cash flows before movements in working

capita!

Increase in trade and other féceivables

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue

Increase in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Interest pdid for derivative financial instruments

Interest paid on borrowings
Interest paid on lease liabliities

Net cash generated by operating activities

Investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash generated byl(used in) investing activities:

Financing activities
Payment for debt issue costs.
Payment of lease liabilities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of derivative finaficial ifistruments

Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net incréase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginnirig of the yéar

‘Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

29

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

£'000 £'000
139,832 44,125
91,497 36,437
59,913 60,572
(139,983) -
3,857 11,328
3,457 (2,622)
98,803. 107,658
257,376 257,498
(31,585) (7.842)
(8,803) 706
16,340 (3,687)
13,422 5,769
246,750 252,444.
(1,794) (4,397)
(59,624) (60,232)
(69) (106)
185,263 -187,709
(275,500) (285,190)
846 (792)
(3,670) (2,122)
586,370 -
308,046 (288,104)
(1,189) (1,003)
(911) (948)
68,185 420,035
(52,417) -
(150,840) (296,527)
(330,000) (20,000)
(467,172) 101,557
26,137 1,162
5,359 4,197
31,496 5,359
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BUUK Inifrastructure No 2 Limited
Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Income tax credit recognised in profit orloss

Finance costs and investmernit income récognised in profit or loss

Amortisation recognised in profit or loss
Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Net (gain}/lossarising onfinancial instruments designated as at fair value

through profit or less’

Operating cash flows before. movements in working capital

Net movement in receivables and payables
Cash (used in{/frbm operations

interest paid for derivative financial instruments
Interest paid on borrowings

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Amounts received from/(advanced to) group undertakings

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries,
Dividends réceived

Net cash generated by/{used in) investing activities

Financing activitles

Proceeds from Borrdwings

Repayment of borrowings

‘Repayment of derivative financial instruments
Payment for debt issue costs

Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Net cash {used in)/generated by financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ard cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at.the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivaleiits at the énd of the year

Year ended
31 December 2021

Year €nded
31 December 2020

£'000 £'000
352,468 36,802
{12,800) (11,357}
(79,677) (24,681)
492 546
(265,550) -
3,457 (2,622)
(1,610) (1,312)
(7,848) (5,272)
(9,458) (6,584)
(1,794) (4,397)
(3,484), (4,658)
(14,736} (15,639)
41,671 158,721
303;937 .
134,200 78,500
479,808 237,221
68,185 95,035
(150,840) (296,527)
(52,417) -
- (91)
(330,000) (20,000)
(465,072) (221,583)
- (1),
4
3
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BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1

General information
The financial information is presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand, because that is the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

Basis of preparation

Basis of accounting
The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financlal
Reporting Standaids (IFRS) as adopted by the United Kingdom.

The consolidated and Company financial information has been prepared under the historical cost converition, except for
the revaluation of financial instruments and certain properties, plant and equipment that are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below and on the
following pages.

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
rarket participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, éxcept for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of IFRS 2 and measurements that have Some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable ‘and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
« Level 1inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;
¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements presént results for the Group, and the Company, for the two 12 month pefiods ending 31
December 2020 and 2021, incorporating the results of the Company for the two 12 month periods ending 31 December
2020 and 2021.

Going concern

The Group is cash generative and holds a Baa2 (investment grade) rating from Moody's. The rating was reconfirmed by
Moody's ih May 2021 At the date of approval of the financial statements the Group has undrawn committed facilities of
£350.0m, with a syndicate of banks, of which £159.6m is available for general corporate purposes and £190.4m is linked to
future capital expenditure. These facilities were renewed in 2019 and are due to expire on 18 September 2024.

The Group has Senior Secured Loan notes denominated in GBP (£1,510m) and US$ ($300m). The loan notes incur a fixed
rate of interest and cross currency interest rate swaps have been taken out to fix the US$ denorninated interest and capital
repayments. The Group’s borrowings have an average remaining maturity of ¢.9.8 years with maturity dates ranging from
2023 to 2048. Amounts totalling £226m fall due for repayment ih April 2023. The Group intends to meet this obligation
through the issue of new Senior Secured Loan Notes in advance of the repayment date. The Directors do not have any
concerns in securing this financing due to the Group's credit rating and history of successfully issuing Loan Notes. [n the
unlikely event the new bond is not in place by April 2023, management have concluded the group has sufficient resources
to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic the Directors have considered the implications on going concern and, as noted within
the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic Report, the availabillity of facilities, combined with the in year
performance of the Group has led the Directors to conclude that the Group will be able to meet its obligations for a period
of 12 monthes.

Further details of the Covid-19 measures undertaken by the Group can be found in the Strategic Report.
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BUUK lnfras’ti'u'ctur:e No 2 Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The Company is partially financed by intércofmpany debt, the majority of which has long-term agreements. Debt with ho
specific agreement is held as under 1 year. The directors have received assurances that the company will have access to
the BUUK Group's financial resources for a period of at least one year from the date of signing of the financial statements,
that companies in the BUUK Group will not demand repayment of any inter-company debt where the company doés not

have the financial resources to effect such payment, and that this financial support will be sufficient for the company to

continue to trade and meet its obligations as they fall due: The Group's forecasts, taking into account reasonable possible
changes in trading performance, show that the Company should have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.

Given the above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company can continue to meet its liabilities as they
fall due, for a period of at least 12 months from the date of this-annual report. Accordingly, they have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

Adoption of new and revised standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16 (amendments) COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

IAS 16 (amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

IFRS 3 (amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework

IAS 37 (amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 (amendments)

1AS 1 (amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

IAS 1 (amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-currént — Deferral of Effective Date
IFRS 4 {(amendments) Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9

IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (amendments) Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1AS 8 (amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates

IAS 12 (amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of the above Standards and Interpretations in future periods will not have a
significant impact on these fihancial statements, except for additional disclosures, when the relevant standards come into
effect.

IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7 IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 {amendments) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 is effective from 1
January 2021. This standard coming into effect has not had any significant impact on thesé financial statements.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carfying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that périod, orin the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future perlods.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimates {which are-dealt with separately below), that
the Directors have made in applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

e Revenue and asset recognition associated with developer contributions:

Revenue and property, plant and equipment are recognised on developer contributlons in accordance with IFRS 15
(Revenuc from Contracts with Customers). The Group recognition is based on the stage of completion of the
infrastructure construction contract, which is measured by the proportion of costs incurred to estimated whole-life
contract costs. judgment is applled in determining the costs to complete existing networks and, therefore, the
percentage of completion. '

25|Page




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date,. that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

¢ Discount rate and long-term terminal growth rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Group's
Infrastructure Assets:

Infrastructure Assets are stated in the statement of financial position at their re-valued amounts {with the exception
of assets in the course of construction which are measured at cost), being the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are-
performed by the Directors at each statement of financial posjtion ‘date. In determining the fair value at the
statement of financial position date, the Directors use the income approach. The income approach requirés the
Directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the Infrastructure Assets and to discount those
cash flows using a suitable discount rate in order to determine present value.

The discount rate applied by the Directors is an equity discount rate determined using various market based
assumptions, Significant judgment is required when determining the risk premium to be applied in determining a
suitable equity discount rate. The long-term terminal growth rate has been determined based on a combination of
past experience, currént order-book and management's expectations of future growth rates in the industry.

Details of the fair value calculation are set out in Note12. As outlined in that note, a change in the discount rate or long-
term terminal growth fate could have a significant impact on the calculated fair value.

Significant accounting policies
Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

As described in Note 19, the Directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques comirionly used by market practitioners are applied. For
derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument. Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported,
where possible, by observable market prices or rates.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on thé. acquisition of a business, representing the difference between the cost of acquisition and the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired, is capitalised and is tested annually for impalrment. Goodwill is not amortised,
and any impairment losses are not subsequently reversed. On the subsequent disposal or discontinuance of a previously
acquired.business, the relevant goodwill is dealt with in the income statement except for the goodwill already charged to
reserves, :

impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired on at least an annual basis or more frequently when there are
indicators of possible impairment. The impairment review requires an enterprise valué calculation of the Group. In
estimating the enterprise value, management is required to make.an estimate of the expected future cash flows
attributable to the Group and to choose an appiopriate discount rate to calculate the present value of thosé cash flows.
Further details are given in Note 9,
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes:

Connections revenue

Revenue is recognised on developéi contributions’in accordance with {FRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers).
The Group recognition is based on the stage of completion of the infrastructure construction contract, which is ‘measured
by the proportion of costs incurred to estimated whole-life contract costs.

Transportation revenue
Revenue is recognised when sefvices are provided and aré rendered based upon usage during the period.

Construction revénue

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the statement of financial position date. This is normally measured by
thé propartion that contract costs incurred for work-performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.
Wheére the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred where it is probable they will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred: When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue; the
expected loss is recoghised as an expense immediately.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Government Grants’

Amounts relating to government grants are recognised in the Income Statement over the. periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants have beéen
presented as a deduction against wages and salaries within cost of sales and other operating expenses in the Income
Statement.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributableé to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those

assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is-deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss:in the perlod in which they are incurred. Arrarigement fees which

are incurred in relation to long-term financing are amortised over the life of the associated-finance using the effective
interest rate method.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax-currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. Thie Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxablé profit, and is
accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Such assets and llabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities dre recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaiiable to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabillties are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised based on tax faws and rates that have been enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except where théy relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity as appropriate. Where current or deferred tax arises from initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Initial measurement

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of a tangible fixed
asset comprises Its purchase price and any costs directly attributable t6 bringing it into working condition for its intended
use. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes -are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

As stated in‘ Note 2, completed Infrastructure Assets are stated in the statement of financial position at their re-valued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated. depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impaired losses.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of Infrastructure Assets is credited to a. revaluation resérve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited ta the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease’in carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such Infrastructure Assets is charged as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balaitce, if any, held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
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Significant accounting policies {cortinued)
Infrastructure assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation )

Thie cost of each item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life. Depreciation is charged to the
income statement so as to write-off the cast léss estimiated residual value on a straight-line basis over the estimated uséful
life of the asset. Depreciation comiriences on the date the assets are available for use and the asset carrying values are
reviewed for impairment when there is an indication that they may be impaired. Freéhold land and assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated.

Infrastructure assets (infrastructure, mains, meters, inverters) 1.25% to 10%
Plant and machinery 20% to 33%
Buildings 2%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation méthod are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on & prospective basis.

Inventories

Invehtories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads, that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value représents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling.and distribution.

,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated and Company statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents include cash on
hand and in banks, net of any outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial instruments

Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
Intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measurement .

When financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised, they are measured at fair value being the cénsideration given
or received plus directly attributable transaction costs. In determining estimated fair value, investments are valued at
quoted bid prices on the trade date. When quoted prices on dn active market are not avallable, fair value is determined by
reference to price quotations for similar instruments traded.

Loans and receivables comprise loans and advances other than purchased loans. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised in accordance with the policy stated-above and subsequently re-measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment. Allowance for impairment is estimated on a case-by-case basis.

Other financial labilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an
effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating Interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash paymeits through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.,

Financial derivative liabilities that are not classéd as hedges are initially and subsequently held at fair value through profit
of loss. Fair value is determined as being the discounted value of the expected future cash flows expected to arise from
the transactions.
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Financial instruments {continued)

The Group use interest rate and cross currency swaps as derlvative financial Instruments to hedge risks associated with
interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations. The cross curréncy swaps are designated as cash flow hedges. At the inception
of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a
hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item. Note 19 sets out details of
the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehgnSive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the income statement and is included in the 'other gains and losses’ line item,

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in the
income statement, in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast
transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a hon-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses
previously deferréd in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset
or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated, of exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, thé cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in
equity is recognised immediately in the incomeé statement.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other
derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group loses control over the contractual rights that comprise that asset. This
occurs when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.
Originated loans and receivables are derecognised on the date they are transferred by the Group.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred "loss event") and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Group recognises loss allowances in the Income Statement for the expected lifetime credit losses on financial assets.
Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered the service entitling them to the contribution.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-Based Payments

Equity settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value excludes the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of

‘equity-settled share-based payment transactions are sét out in Note 22.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each statement
of finaricial position date, the-Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result
of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. The impact of the fevision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects- the revised estimate, with 3 corresponding
adjustment t0 equity reserves.

Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of -a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill dre initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired as part’of a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the estimated usefu! life of the asset. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Restructuring and integration costs

Restructuring and integration costs are charged to the Income Statement in the period in‘which they are incurred. They
are disclosed separately on the face of the Income Statement as the Directors consider them to be one-off and non-
recurring in nature, and so not reflective of the ongoing operations of the Graup.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract s, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to contra! the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee ‘

The Group recoghises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the uriderlying asset or the site on which it is ocated, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset'is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the-right-of-use
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest raté implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
iricremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there i$ a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
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Significant accounting policles (continued)

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset or is recarded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis ovér the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method except for acquisitions of
subsidiaries already under common control. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted
against the cost of acquisition where théy qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below). All other subséquent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability are accounted for in accordance with
relevant IFRSs. Changes in the fair valué of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously-held interests in the acquired entity are
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

The acqujree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for re¢ognition under IFRS 3
are recognised at thelr fair value at the acquisition date, except that:
¢ deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
e liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree's share-based payment
awards are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment; and
e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with [FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration trarisferred over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end. of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. These
provisional amounits are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional asséts and/or liabilities recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
4

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit-or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as permitted by applicable IFRSs):
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4 Revenue

Continuing operations in'the UK
Gas

Electricity

Fibre:

Water & Waste

District Energy

Smart Metering

Transportation Révenue

Connéctions Revenue
Construction Revenue
Other Revénue
Total Revénue

5 Investment révenues and finance costs

Interest incorme .on bank depaosits

Investment income recognised on dérivative financial
instruments

Neét'¢hange in fair value of inflation rate swaps

Total interest income

Interest on Bank overdrafts and loans
Amortisation of arrangement fees
Commitment fees.

Interest on lease liabilities

Net change in fair value of inflation rate swaps
Total interest expense

Less: amounts included in the cost-of qualifying assets

Net finance costs recognised in ‘pro,f'it or loss

‘Note’

19

Year ended Year ended
31.-December 2021 31 December 2020
£'000 £'000
132,504 127,668
88,109 71,277
19,488 14,890
6,913 5,957
4,493 1,254
19,988 48,860
271,495 269,906
120,406 92,151
8,845. 4,761
11,741 12,962
412,487 379,780
Year endéd Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
£'000 £'000
14 91
623 624
- 2,624
637 3,339
{59,306) (59,962)
(912) (964)
(2,114) (1,891)
_(69) (106)
(3,457) -
(65,858) (62,923)
1,851 1,634.
(63,370) (57,950)

Allinterest and investment income was earned from loans and receivables (including cash and bank balance’s) and

derivatives.

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed.generally is 3.4% per anhum (2020: 3.4%).

6 Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been arrived at.after.charging:

Depreclation of property, plant and equipment (see note 12)
Amortisation of intangible assets (see note 10)

Staff costs (see note 7)

(Impairment reveésal)/impairment charge

Yéar endeq
31 December 2021
£'000

92,830
5,973

89,748
(189)

Year ended
31 Decembei 2020
£000

102,120
5,538
71,346
(1,732)

33| Page




BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Notes to.the Consolidatéd Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

6 Profit for the year (continued)

Fees payable to the Company's auditoF ahd their assoclates'for the
audit:of the Company’s annual financial statements :
Fees payable to the company's auditor and their associates for other
services to the group: ' i

- the audit of the Company's subsidiaries and other services

Total audit fees

- audit related assurance services

Total non-audit fees

Total fees payable to the Company's auditor-and their associates

7 Staff costs

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

The average monthly number of employees (including directors) was:

Construction and asset management
Administrative staff

Directors' Remuneration,

Emoluments
Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes
Total

The number of directors who:
Are members.of a defined contribution pensién’scheme

Year ended Year enided
31 December-2021 31 December:2020
£'000. £'000
102 98
683 652
‘785 750
15
15 -
800 750
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 Deceniber2020
£'000 £'000
76,018 59,575
8,277 6,887
5,453 4,884
89,748 71,346
Year ended Year ended
31 Decerber 2021 31 December 2020
No No
1,233 1,173,
327 292
1,560 1,465
" Year endéd Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
£'000 .£'000,
3,687 2,176
3 8.
3,690 2,184
No No
1 1
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Staff Costs {continued)

Rerineration of the highest paid director Year ended Year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
£'000 :£'000
Emoluments 2,134 1,388

Cornpany contribution to money purchase schemes - -

2,134 1,388

As at 31 December 2021 there were 5 (2020: 5) serving Directors.of the Company. Three of these Directors are remunerated

for their services by other members of the Brookfield Asset Managément inc Group and-so are not reflected in the

remuneration disclosed above. The remaining Directors’ remuneration disclosed above reflects amounts paid to them for
their services to the Group.

Tax
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 Decamber 2020
£'000 £'000
(a) Tax charge
" The tax charge is made up as follows
Current tax:
Adjustment to prior year 1 (14)
Current year group relief 243 4
Total current tax (credit)/charge 244 (10)
Deferred tax: ’
Adjustment to prior year {323) {164)
Origination and reversal of timing differences 22,710 15,410
Charige in recognition of unused tax losses - {15)
Effect of increased tax rate on opening asset and liability 68,866 21,216
Total deferred tax charge 91,253 36,447
Tax charge (Note 8(b)) 91,497 36,437

{b) Factors affecting tax charge
The tax asséssed on the profit on ordinary activities for‘the year is lower than the blended standard fate of corporation tax
in the UK applicable to the Group in the year of 19.00% (2020 — 19.00%). The differences are reconciled below;

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 231,329 80,562
Standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19.00% 19.00%
Profit n‘sn.ordmaTy activities rultiplied by effective rate of 43,953 15,307
corporation tax in the UK
Effects of:

Adjustments to prior year (322) (178)
Expenses not deductible/(income not.taxable) for tax purposes (26,450) 107
Effect of difference between current and future tax rates 5,450 -
Change in recognition of unused tak losses - (15)
Change in corporation tax rate 68,866 21,216
Total tax charge for year 91,497 36,437

(c) Factors that may affecq future tax charges

“The Finance Act 2020, substantively enacted in March 2020, provided for the main rate of corporation tax to remaln at 19%.

Accordifigly deferred tax in for the year ended 31 December 2020 was calculated using a tax rate of 19%. The Finance Bill
2021, substantively enacted in May 2021, proy@de_d forthe main rate of corpcration tax rate increase to 25% from'1 April 2023.
Accordingly, deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been calculated using a tax rate of 25%.
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Tax {continued)

‘Year ended Year énded
31 December .31 December
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax
Itemis that will not be reclassified subseque_nt/y to profit or loss: )
Gains on Infrastructure asset revaluations . {24,783) (30,840)
Change in deferred tax rate (62,508) (20,729)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Cash flow hedges: .
Gains arising.during the year 20 (712)
Change'in deferred tax rate (214) 4
Total income tax credit recognised in other comprehénsive income (87,485) (52,277)
Goodwill
2021 2020
Group Group
£'000 £'000
Cost and carrying value
At 1 January 27,608, 25,969
Additions 3,483 1,639
Disposals (6,911) -
At 31 December 24,180 27,608

Goodwill comprises £19,058,000 arising on acquisition of Inexus Group Limited i November 2012, £1,801,000 on
acquisition of EPLR Holdings Limited in Feliruary 2020 and £3,321,000 on acquisition of trade and assets of Passiv Systems’
Limited (PSL) on 21 April 2021.

Additions relate to recognition of £3=,321(000 goodwill in relation to the acquisition of the trade and assets of Passiv
Systems Limited and further goodwill of £163,000 recagnised In relatiori to EPLR Holdings Limited in the year. During the
year the Group disposed of its shareholding in Smart Meter Assets 1 Ltd, detalls of which can be seen in note 29.

Goodwill has been allocated to the Group as a whole following integration of the relevant businesses.

During’ the year goodwill was tested for ‘Im'p\airment in accofdance with IAS 36. In assessing whether an impairment of
goodwill is required, the carrying value of the Group’s net assets is commpared to the fair value of the Group.

The Group calculates fair value using a disco‘unted cash flow model, which estimates the future cash flows and discounts
them using a discount rate of 6.5% (2020: 6.5%).

The key assumptigns used in estimating the future cash flows are revenue growth, order-book build out rates, margins,
capital expenditure-gfowth and finance ‘costs. These assumptions have been based on a combination of past experience,
current order-book and management’s expectations of future growth rates in the industry. The estimate is based on a 10
year valuation model using internally-approved budgets which are built on detailed RPl:-based revenue growth models.. A
perpetuity calculation is then applied using a long-term growth rate of 2.0% (2020: 2.0%) and based on the final year of the
10 year model, normalised for.any known one-off items reflected In year 10. The Directors consider this to.be a Level 3 fair
value in the hierarchy set out in the Accounting Policies.
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On the basis of this assessment, the Directofs consider that there is no requirement for impairment-of goodwill in the year.
Goodwill {(continued)

The estimated fair value was only materially sensitive to two irfiput dssumptions made in defiving the model — the discount
rate and the long-teim terminal growth rate. A 100 basis point increase in the discount rate would result in a decrease in
the fair value of approximately £397m and a 100 basis point decréase in the long-term tefminal growth rate would result in
a decrease in the fair value of approximately £278m. Neither would indicate impairment.

Other intangible fixed assets

Customer Order book 2021 2020

Group Group
£'000 £'000-

Cost

At 1 January 61,007 60,782

Additions 4,221 225

At 31 December 65,228 61,007

Amortisation

At 1 January 27,709 22,171

Charge for the year 5,973 5,538

At 31 December 33,682 27,709

Carrying amount

At 31 December 31,546 33,298

Amortisation is charged on'a straight line basis over 15.years representing the estimated useful life. Amortisation isincluded
in the Income Statement within Depreciation and Amortisation. The remaining amortisation period for the ordér book is 6
years.

Additions of £4,221,000 relate to the customer order book recognised on acquisition of the trade and assets of Passiv
Systems Limited.

During the year the customer order book was tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36. In dssessirig whether an
impairment of the customer order book is required, the samé test as described in Note 9 wasapplied and on that basis the
Directors consider that there is no requirement for impairment of the customer order book in the year.

Thé Company does not hold any intangible assets.

Investments
Company
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
‘Cost
At 1January 1,854,024 1,854,024
Additions 24,525 -
Disposals - (38,387) -
At 31 December 1,840,162 1,854,024

During the year the Company .acquired the share capital of Power On Connections Limited from' another subsidiary
undertaking for £24,525,000 and acquired £1 of share capital in Passiv UK Limited on incorporation of the Company.

During the year the Group disposed of its shareholding in Smart Meter Assets 1 Ltd, details of which can be seen in note
29.
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Details of the Company's direct and indirect subsidiaries at the erid of the reporting year are as follows:

Name of Subsidiary

GTC Pipelines Limited

The Electricity Network Comipany

Limited
Power On lavestments Limited
Power On Connections Limited

GTC Utility Construction Limited

‘GPL Investments Limited

GTC Infrastructure Limited
BUUK Infrastructure Issuer Plc
Inexus Connections Limited

tnexus Group {Holdings) Limited

Independent Pipelines Limited
Quadrant Pipelines Limited
Independent Meters Limited

Independent Power Networks
Limited
Cannect Utilities Limited

Metropolitan Infrastructure
Limited

Independent Community Heating

Limited
Open Fibre Networks Limited

Independent Service Provider
Limited
Independent Water Networks
Limited

Open Fibre Networks (Wholesale)

Limited
Smart Meter Assets 1 Ltd

EPLR Holdings Limited
EPL&R Utilities. Lirnited

Express Utilities Limited (formerly

Express Pipelaying & Repairs
Limited)

Ultrastream Business Services
Limited

Passiv UK Limited

Passiv Capital Limited

arto.energy Limited

Principal Activity

Ownership of gas infrastructure
Ownership of electricity
infrastructure

Holding company

Construction of electric
Infrastructure

Construction of infrastructure
Dormant

Provider of services to the Group
Debt issuer

Holding company

Holding company

Ownership of gas infrastructure
Ownership of gas infrastructure
Ownership and operation of utility
meters in the UK

Ownership of electricity
infrastructure
Procurement, design and

management of utility infrastructure
projects

Procurement, design and
management of utility infrastructure
projects

Ownership and operation of district
heating infrastructure

Owiership and operation of
telecommunications infrastructure
Provider of telecommunication
services

Ownership and operation of water
infrastructure

Provision of wholesale fibre services

Ownership and operation of smart
utllity meters

Dormant

Dormant

Construction of infrastructure

Dormant

Provider of domestic advanced
energy monitoring services

Provider of domestic advanced
energy monitoring services

Provier of automated Feed-in Tarrif
management software

Place of
incorporation
and
operations

UK
UK

UK
UK

UK

UK

Guernsey
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

Proportion of
ownership at
31 December
2021

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Proportion of
ownership at

‘31 December

2020

100%

-100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%

0%

0%

The registered office of each of the above sub;idiary undertakings is the same as that of the Company, .except for GTC
Infrastructure Limited. The registered office of GTC infrastructure timited is Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port,
Guernsey, GY1 3HB and the Company is a UK tax resident. All shares held in subsidiary undertakings are ordinary shares.
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12 Property, Plant'and Equipmént
2021 Group
Land and Plant& .. Assets in the
S o Infrastructure
buildings Machinery course of Total
assets s
construction
£000 £'000 -£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021 12,793 45,200 ‘3,886,927 224,622 4,169,542
Additions 93 11,403 25,469 242,667 279,632
"Surplus on revaluation - - 99,132 - 99,132
Transferred between asset classes - - 207,526 (207,576) -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - (4,379) (583,363) - (587,742)
At 31 December.2021 12,886° 52,224 3,635,691 259,763 3,960,564
Depreciation
At 1 Jénuary 2021 2,334 29,740 409,910 - 441,984
Charge forthe year 1,066 5,222 86,542 - 92,830
Cap{tallse.d |r\1t0 assets'in the course of ) 2,624 B ) 2624
construction " )
Eiiminated on disposal of assets - {4,199) {119,765) - (123,964)
At 31 December 2021 3,400 - 33,387 376,687 - 413,474
Carrying amount
At31 December 2021 9,486 18,837. 3,259,004 259,763 3,547,090
Comprising:
At cost 9,486 18,837 - 259,763 288,086
At valuation - - 3,259,004 - 3,259,004
2020.Group
‘Land and Plant & e Assets in the
I L Infrastructure
buildings Machinery . course of Total
assets ..
construction
£'000 ‘£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost-or valuation
At 1 January 2020 © 11,680 41,999 3,495,134 188,269 ‘3,737,082
Additions 1,113 4,645 74,702 206,874 287,334
On acquisition - 744 - - 744
Suiplus on revaluation - - 162,315 = 162,315
Transferred between asset classes - - 170,521 (170,521) -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - (2,188) (15,745) - (17,933)
At 31 December 2020 12,793 45,200 3,886,927 224,622 4,169,542
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 1,142 24,200, 319,549 - 344,891
Charge for the year. v 1,192 5,090 95,838 - 102,120
C_apltallse.d into assets in the course of ) 2,370 ) 3 2.370
construction .
Eliminated on disposal of assets - (1,920) (5,477) - {7,397)
At-31 December 2020 2,334 29,740 409,910 - 441,984
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 10,459 15,460 3,477,017 224,622 3,727,558
Comprising:
At cost 10,459 15,460 - 224,622 250,541
At valuation - - 3,4'/7,()17 - 3,477,017

39] Page



BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

12

13

14

Property, Plant and Equipnient {continued)

Included within land and buildings above are right of use assets with a carrying amount of £1,145,028 (2020: £1,959,§63).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no additions (2020: £883,053) and depreciation of £814,635 (2020:
£893,497) has been recognised in respect of right of use assets.

Infrastructure assets were revalued at the statement of financial position date by the Directors of the Group. The valuation
was based on a fair value model which applied an RPI-based revenue growth methodology to a zero-corinections growth
scenario aver a 10 year period using internally-approved budgets which are built on detailed RPI-based revenue growth
models. A perpetuity calculation is then used and based on the final year of the 10 year model, normalised for any known
one-off items reflected In year 10; The fair value model assumes an annual level of opérating costs and maintenance
expenditure sufficiérit only to support the continued operation of the infrastructure assets in existence at the statement of
financial position date. The rate used to discount the estimated cash flows was 6.5% (2020: 6.5%). The Directors consider
this to be a Level 3 fair value in the hierarchy set out in the Accounting Policies.

The estimated fair value was materially sensitive to two input assumption made in deriving the model — the discount rate
and the long-teri terminal growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%). A 100 basis point increase in the discount rate would result in'a
decrease in the fair value of approximately £234m and a 100 basis point decrease in the long-term terminal growth rate
would result in a decrease in the fair value of approximately £155m.

The UK Government has set out its emissions target to reach net zero by 2050. The role of gas networks in achieving
greenhouse gas emissions reductions targets is currently uncertain. However, BUUK’s belief is that the gas assets we ‘own

and operate will continue to be in use beyond 2050 and therefore their useful lives remain appropriate.

At 31 December 2021, had Infrastructure assets of the Group been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, their caréying amount would have been approximately £2,163m (2020: £2,359m).

The Company holds no Property, Plant and Equipment.

Construction contracts in progress at the statement of financial position date:

Group 31 December 31 December’
2021 2020
Group Group
£'000 £'000
Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other 44,044 33,571
receivables
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables (34,435) (24,596)
9,609 8,975
g:tnet,ract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to 608,931 525,982
Less: progress billings , (753;065) (668,432)
(144,134) {142,450)
The Company holds no.construction contracts.
The Group holds no reténtions.
Inventories
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Group Group
£'000 £'000
Raw rnaterials and consumables 3,247 1,509

Raw materials and consumables correspond to materials for construction held on construction site, warehouse and vans.
The Company holds no inventories.
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15 Trade and other receivables

31 December

31 December 31 Deceimber '31 December

2021 2021 2020 2020
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'0600
Amounts.due within one year:”
Arpgg.nts receivable for thé sale of goods and provision of 11,455 ) 11,483 .
services = g
Amounts due from construction contract cistomers 44,044 - 33,571 -
An?t')‘gnts due frorj_n fg!lgvx{ Brookfield Infrastructure 15,035 15,000 5,928 5,000
Parthers Group.unidertakings - -
Other receivables 9,177 1,966 7,346 954
Prepayments 6,051 166 4,583 -
Accrued income 62,626 - 57,729 -
148,388 17,132 120,640 5,954
Amounts due from fellow Group undertakings - 326,050 - 430,681
148,388 343,182 120,640 436,635
Amiounts due in more thanone year:
Deferred tax. 38,621 6,599 31,555 6,569
.38,621 6,599 ‘31,555 6,569

Excluding prepayments, deferred tax and accrued income, trade ‘rétéivables.disclosed:above are measured at amartised cost.
“The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in

Note.19.

The Group aind Coripany deferred tax asset.included in the statement of financial position is as

follows:
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2020 2020
‘Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Short-term timing differences 934 - 571 -
Financial instruments 6,141 6,599 6,090 6,569
Tax losses carried forward -31,546 - 24,894 -
Deferred tax asset. 38,621 6,599 31,555 6,569

Deferred tax assetsrecognised of the Group and Company do not expire. The Group had urirecognised deferred tax assets of
£467,682 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £386,596) in respect of unutilised tax losses,
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15 “Trade and other receivables (continijed)

Group

The Group movements in deferred tax-dssets-are as follows:

At.1 January 2020

Credit/{chargé) to profit o Ioss

Charge to.other comprehensive fncome
Efféct.of change in tax rate:

- Income Statément

- Other Cbmprehensiye’ Income

‘At 31 Decemiber 2020

Credit/(charge) to profit or loss.

Charge to other comprehefisivé income
Effect of change in fax raté:

- Income.Statement

- Other Compiehensive Inéoirie

(At 31 December 2021

‘Company

The Company movements in'the deférred tax asset are as follows:

Atd fa’nu'ary )
Charge to profit or loss
Effect of change intax rate

At 31 December

Other short-  Revaluation of Tax losses. Total

termtiming  financial assets
differences

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

82 7,891 23,074 31,047

423 {2,159) (895) (2,631)

. (514) . - (514)

66 868 2,715 ‘3,649

- 4 - 4

571 6,090 24;894 31,555

183 (2,044) {1,209) (3,070)

- 234 - 234

180 2,075 7,861 10,116

- (214) - (214)

934 5,141 31,546, 38,621

Financial Financlal

instruments instruments

2021 2020

£000 £'000

6,569 7,381,

2,104 56

(2,074) (868)

6,599 6,569
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16 Trade and other payables

Amounts due within one year:

Trade payables

Amounts due to contract customers (see note.13)
Other taxes and social security costs

Other payables

Amounts due to fellow Brookfield Infrastructure
Partners Group undertakings

Capital payabies

Accruals

Amounts owed to fellow Group undértakings
Amounts due in more than one year:

Amouits owed to fellow Group undertakings
Deferred tax

31 Decemiber

31 December

31 December

31 December

2021 2021 2020 2020
Group Company ‘Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
8,152 - 7,253 -
34;435 - 24,596 -
(128) - 129 -
7,817 - 11,698 -
6;019 - 9,223
38,602 - 37,114 -
61,378 1,148 52,974 1,371
156,275 1,148 142,987 1,371
156,275 1,148 142,987 1,371
- 1,711,140 - 1,711,140
634,053 459 476,921 479
634,053 1,711,599 476,921 1,711,619

Trade payables and accrued expenses principally coriprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The
average credit period taken for trade purposes is-30 days (2020 - 30 days). The Group has financial risk management policies in

place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

The Directors cansider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair values.
Amounts owed to fellow Group undertakings are unsecured and bear interest at between 2.36% and 4.55% (2020: between
2.36% and 4.55%). These amounts are repayable when the cofresponding US Private Placement ("USPP") bohd debt of the

Group, disclosed in note 17, is.required to be repaid.

Group

The Group and Company deferred tax liability included in the statement of financial

position is as follows:

‘Accelerated tax depreciation

Revaliiation of Property, Plant & Equipiment
Revaluation of financial assets

Intangibles

Financial instrumerits

Deferred tax liability

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 Déecember

2021 2021 2020 2020
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
359,088 - 257,714 -
266,697 - 212,721 -
412 - 198 -
7,856 - 6,288 -

- 459 - 479
634,053 459 476;921 479
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16. Trade and otherpayables (contined)

Group

The Group-movements in deferred tax liability are as follows:

At 1January 2620

‘Charge/(credit) to profit or loss

Charge to qt'_h'__e'r comprehensive income
Acquired in busiriess combinationi
[Effect.of change in tax rate:

-Income Statement:

- Other Cormprehensive.Income

At 31 December 2020

‘Charge/(credit) to profit or loss

Charge to other compréehensive income
Acquired in business:combination
Disposal.of a subsidiary
Effect 6f change in tax rate:

< Income Statement

- Other'Compretiensive Income

At 31 December 2021

Company-

The Company movements in deferred tax liability are-as follows:

At1Jahuary
‘Credit to profit or loss
Effect of change in tax rate

At 31 December

Accelerated Revaluation Revaluation Intangibles Total
tax of Property,  of financial
depreciation Plant & -assets
Equipme»nt )
£'000 £'000 £2000 £000 £'000
214,312 166,676 - 6,563 387,551
18,001 (4,354) - (1,047), 12,600
- 30,840 198. - 31,038
‘138 138
25,263 {1,170) - 772 24,865
- 20,729 - - 20;729
257,714 212,721 198 6,288 476;921
24,762 (3,972) - (1,473) 19,317
- 24,783 214 - 24,997
- - - 802 802
(4,771) (24,703) - - (29,474)
81,383 (4.640) - 2,239 78,982
- 62,508 - - 62,508
359,088 266,697 412 7,856 634,053

Financial Financial

instrumernits insttuments

2021 2020

£'000. £'000

479 546

131 (3)

(151) (64)

459 479,
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17 ‘Loans and borrowings

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2020 2020
Group Company" Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Secured borrowirigs 1,731,697 - 1,809,495 80,036
Finance fees (5,867) - (6,778) (1,280)
1,725,830 - 1,802,717 78,756
Amounts due for settlement within 12 ) ) } i

months
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months’ 1,731,697 - '1,809',495 80,036
Finance fees (5,867) - (6,778) (1,280)
Total secured borrowings 1,725,830 - 1,802,717 78,756
Total borrowings 1,725,830 - 1,802,717 78,756

The Company also has in issue £158,539,184 (2020: £158,539,184) of convertible loan hotes which are non-interest bearing and
which have been classified as equity (see Statement of Changes in Equity). The notes expire in 2044 and are redeemable in cash
-and/or convertible to equity at any time at the discretion of the Company.

Pfesehted' within accruals is £13,404,866 (2020: £13,385,130) of accrued but unpaid interest on the Group’s borrowings.

Borrowings are secured by English law governed fixed and floating security over the assets of BUUK Infrastructure No 1 Limited,
BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited, BUUK Infrastructure Issuer Pl¢c, GTC Infrastructure Limited and certain gther non-regulated
group companies, and Guernsey law govérned security over the shares and related rights in GTC Infristructure Limited.

Term Loans

The Group’s debt consists of US Private Placement {"USPP") borids of which £601.1m were issued in 2013, £100m was issued in
2014, £100m was Issued in 2015, £285m was issued in 2016, £300m was issued in 2018 and £325m was issued in 2020. These
bonds consist of $300m and £1,510m principal with original maturity dates of between 10 and 30 years and an average remaining
maturity of 9.8 years (2020 - 10.8 years).

In addition, the Group utilisés a capex facility (facility B), a working capital facility (facility C) and a liquidity facility.

Facility B has total available to draw downi of £300m of which £nil was drawn down at 31 Déceinber 2021 (2020 — £67m). Interest
is charged at SONIA + Credit Adjustment Spread (CAS) + 1.75%. The Facility is drawn in tranches up to 6. months in length and
the Group has the ability to rollover each drawdowni at its discretion until the maturity of the facility in 2024. it'is the Group’s
current intention to continue to rollover each drawdown, therefore in accordance with IAS 1 the liability is.presented as non-
current.

Facility C has total available to draw down of £50m of which £nil was drawn down at 31 December 2021 (2020 - £13m). Interest
is charged at SONIA + CAS + 1.75%.

The Liquidity facility has total available to draw down of £75m of which £nil was drawn down at 31 December 2021 (2020 —

£75m). Interest is chargéd at SONIA + CAS + 1.75%.
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17 Loans-and borrowings {continued)

Group 31 December 2021
2021 ' £'000 £'000
Currehcy  Interest rate Year of Weighted average Nominal Carrying

maturity interest rate for the value amount

period ’

Secured bank loan - FacilityB&C ~ GBP SONIA+CAS+1.75% 2024 1.58% - -
Bonds $300m (USD) usb 4.29% 2023 4.29% 201,140 221,697
Bonds £400m (GBP) GBP 4.05%-4.63% 2023-2033 4.42% 400,000 400,000
Bonds £100m (GBP) GBP 4.51%-4.61% 2029 4.55% 100,000 100,000
Bonds £100m (GBP) GBP 3.72%-3.96% 2030-2035 3.79% 100,000 100,000
Bonds £285m (GBP) GBP 2.62%-3.14% 2026-2036 2.90% 285,000 285,000
Bonds £300m (GBP) GBP 2.62%-3.04% 2027-2048 2.92% 300,000 300,000
Bonds £325m (GBP) GBP 2.20%-2.66% 2030-2045 2.36% 325,000 .325,000

1,711,240 1,731,697

Interest charged on the secured bank loans is fixed at SONIA + Credit Adjustment Spread (CAS) + 1.75% for the period of each draw down
as ‘at the date of that draw down.

All facilities are required to comply with the same financial covenants on a quarterly basis, being a Debt Service cover of greater than.
1.4x and a Leverage ratio of less than 8.5x. The facility was utilised until repayment of all outstanding drawn down amounts was made in
May 2021, no further drawdowns were made in the year, resulting ina nil balance at 31 December 2021.

Company 31 December
2021
2021 £'000 £'000
Currency Interest rate Year of Weighted average Nominal  Carrying
maturity interest rate for the value amount
period
Secured bank loan - Facility B& C  GBP SONIA+CAS+1.75% 2024 1.258%. - -

Interest charged on the secured bankloans is fixed at SONIA + Credit Adjustment Spread (CAS) + 1.75% for the period of each draw.down
as at the date of that draw down.

Group 31'December 2020
2020 £'000 £'000
Currency Interest rate Year of Weighted average Nominal Carrying

maturity interest rate for the value amount

) period

Secured-bank loan - Facility B& C ~ GBP LIBOR +1.5% 2024 1.96% 80,036 80,036
Bonds $300m (USD) usp 4.29% 2023 4,29% 201,139 219,459
Bonds £400m {GBP) GBP 4,05%-4.63% 2023-2033 4.42% 400,000 400,000
Bonds £100m (GBP) GBP. 4,51%-4.61% 2029 4.55% 100,000 100,000
Bonds £100m (GBP) GBP 3.72%-3.96% 2030-2035  3.79% 100,000 100,000
Bonds £285m (GBP) GBP 2.62%-3.14% 2026-2036  2.90% 285,000 285,000
Bonds £300rm (GBP) GBP 2.62%-3.04% 2027-2048  2.92% 300,000 300,000
Bonds £325m (GBP) GBP 2.20%-2.66% 2030-2045  2.36% 325,000 325,000

1,791,175 1,809,495

Interest charged on the secure bank loans is fixed at LIBOR +1.5% for the period of each draw down as at the date of that draw down..
All facilities are required to comply with the same financial covenants on a quarterly basis, being a Debt Service cover of greater than
1:4x and a Leverage ratio of less than 8.5x.

Company 31 December 2020
2020 £'000 £'000
Currency Interest rate Year of Weighted average Naminal Carrying
maturity interest rate for the value amount

. period
Secured bank loan - Facility B& C  GBP LIBOR+1.5%. 2024 1.96% 80,036 80,036
80,036 80,036

Interest charged on the secured bank loans is fixed at LIBOR +1.5% for the period of each draw down as at the date of that draw down.
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Deferred income

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Group Group

£'000 £'000

Billing in advance of wark ¢ompleted 144,134 127,794
Current 78,239 87,027
Non-current 65,895 40,767
144,134 127,794

The Group's standard terms of trade require the developer to make their contribution within 14 days of acceptance of the
quote for new infrastructure. Upfront payments are held in deferred revenue in the statement of financial position and
recognised as revenue in accordance with the percentage.completion of the new infrastructure by reférence to incurred and
anticipated construction spend, in line with the Accounting Policy set out in Note 3. The Company holds no deferred income.

Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’s capital structure consists of a mixture of long-term fixed rate borrowing, short-term variable rate boirowings,
long-term derivative financial instruments, convertible loan notes and ordinary shares. Thé long-term and short-term
borrowings provide, in the opinion of the Directors, an appropriate combination of secured fixed instruments and more
flexible, available-on-demand liquidity facilities and working capital, with the Group's capital management objective being to
safeguard and support the business as a going concern through the business cycle. The derivative financial instruments exist
to hedge risks arising from this capital structure, the main risks being Interest rate risk, credit risk, currency risk and liquidity
risk. These risks arise from exposures that dceur In the normal course of business and are managed by the Group's finance
department as well as BIP regional management. The responsibilities of the Group's finance department include, among
others, the monitoring of financial risks, management of cash resources, debt and capital structure management, approval of
counterparties and relevant transaction limits, and oversight of all significant treasury activities undertaken by the Group.

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and derivatives used for risk
management purposes. The Group's accounting policies with regard to financial instruments are detailed in note 3.

a) Derivatives, financial instruments and risk management
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain exposures to fluctuations in interest rates, inflation rates
and exchange rates. The Group does not hold any speculative financial instruments,

As part of the issue of the fixed rate corporate bonds, the Group has entered into cross currency swaps with notional value
$300m to hedge the potential movement in the USD:GBP exchange rate. The fair value at 31 December 2021 of this
instrument is a £22.5m asset (2020 - £19.7m asset} {(including IFRS 13 CVA adjustments). The Directors consider this to be a
Level 2 valuation in the hierarchy set out in the Accounting Policies in Note 3, with the valuation being calculated by third
party experts, CHatham Financial, and based on the discounted value of expected future cash flows arising from the
instrument. The Directors have credit-risk adjusted the third party valuations taking into account the creditworthiness of the
group. The cross currency swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge. During the year a gain of £2.8m (2020: costs of
£2.4m) has been recognised in other comprehensive income and £2.2m (2020: £6.9m) has been reclassified to profit and loss.

During the year, the Group. held inflation-linked interest rate swaps which were settled on 27 May 2021 (2020 — notional
principal of £125.6m and a fair value of £50.8m) (including IFRS 13 CVA adjustments). As the Directors did not consider these
instfuments to be an effective hedge against any of the identified risks in the existing capital structure, they were designated
fair value through profit and loss. The Directors consider this to be a Level 2 valuation in the hierarchy set outin the Accounting
Policies in Note 3, with the valuation being calculated by third party experts, Chatham Financial, and based on the discounted
value of expected future cash flows arising from the instrument. The Directors have credit-risk adjusted the third party
valuations taking into account the creditworthiness of the Group.

b) Interest rate risk
The Group has financial assets and liabilities which are exposed to changes in market interest rates. Changes in interest rates

primarily impact borrowings by changing their future cash flows.
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19- Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

‘Group

31 December 2021

Financial assets

Measured at arnortised cost:

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Measured at fair value:

Derivative instruments in effective hedging relationships
Total financial assets ‘

Financial liabilities

Measuied at amortised cost:

Borrowings

Trade and other payables (at amortised cost)
Leasé liabilities’

Total financial liabilities

Company

31 December 2021

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost:

Other receivables

Amouints due from Group undertakings
Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities.

Measured at amortised cost:

Amounts payable to Group undertakings
Trade and other payables (at amortised cost)
Total financial liabilities

Group

‘31 December 2020

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost:

Other receivables

Cash and bank balarices

Measured at fair value:

Derivative instruments in effective hedging relationships
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost:

Borrowings

Trade and other payables (at amortised cost)

Lease liabilities

Measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Fair value through profit and'loss derivative irstruments
Total financiai liabilities

Floating Fixed raté  Non-interest Total
rate bearing
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- - 142,337 142,337
31,496 - - 31,496
- 22,509 - 22,509
31,496 22,509 142,337 196,342
- 1,731,697 - 1,731,697
- - 156,403 156,403
- 1,280 - 1,280
- 1,732,977 156,403 1,889,380
Floating, Fixedrate  Non-interest Total
rate bearing
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- - 16,966 16,966
- 326,050 - 326,050
3 - - 3
3 326,050 16,966 343,019
- 1,711,140 - 1,711,140
. - 1,148 1,148
- 1,711,140 1,148 1,712,288
Floating Fixedrate  Non-interest Total
rate bearing
£/000 £'000 £'000 £000
- 116,057 116,057
5,359 - - 5,359
- 19,664 : 19,664
5,359 19,664 116,057 141,080
80,036 1,729,459 - 1,809,495
- - 142,858 142,858
- 2,191 - 2,191
- 50,754 - 50,754
80,036 1,782,404 142,858 2,005;298
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19 Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Floating rate Fixed rate Non-interest Total
bearing
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
31 December 2020
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost:
Other receivables - - 5,954 5,954
Amounts due from Group undertakings . 430,681 - 430,681
Cash and bank balances 3 - - 3
Total financial assets - 3 430,681 5,954 436,638
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost:
Borfowings 80,036 - - 80,036
Amounits payable to Group undertakings - 1,711,140 - 1,711,140
Trade and other payables (at amortised cost) - - 1,371 1,371
Measured at fair value through profit and loss: :
Fair value through profit and loss derivative instruments - 50,754 - -50,754
Total financial liabilities 80,036 1,761,894 1,371 1,843,301
Financial liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Group ‘Group
£'000 £'000
Changes in fair value attributable to changes in counterparty (87) (-502)

credit risk recognised during the year

Cumulative changes in fair value attributable to changes in

counterparty credit risk 478 365

There are no future amounts payable in relation to the derivative instruments at fair value through profit and loss as these
were settled in full during the year.

¢) Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk arlses as a result of transactions-in the Group's ordinary course of business and is applicable to all
financial assets. Investments in cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments are with approved
counterparty banks and other financial institutions. Counterparties are assessed prior to, during, and after the conclusion
of transactions to ensure expostife to credit risk is limited to an acceptable level. The maximuri exposure with respect to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset on the Statement of Financial Position.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of trade receivables. Whilst the Group is dependent on a number of large
customers, the credit risk from the failure of those customers is limited by regulatory regimes therefore credit risk is
believed to be limited. The Group is not reliant on any particular customer in the markets in which it operates and there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group regularly monitors its exposure to bad debts in order to minimise this
exposure.

The Group has strict procedures in place to manage the credit risk on trade receivables. Credit-evaluations are performed
for all customers and credit limits are established based on internal or external rating criteria. The credit quality of the
Grougp's significant customers is monitored on an on-going basis, and receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
are considered of good credit quality.

The average credit period taken for trade receivables is-19 days (2020 - 19 days) for regulated transportation income, and
30 days (2020 - 30 days) for other income.
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19

Financial instruments and risk management {continued) )
There were no material impairments of trade receivables as at 31 December 7021. The solvency of the debtor and their
ability to repay the receivables were considered in assessing the impairment of such assets.

Ageing
Ageing of past due but not yet impaired receivables:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Group Group

£'000 £'000

Less than 90 Days 55,136 42,237
Greater than 90 Days 14,031 13,843
69,167 56,080

Bad debt provisions (Note 19 e) (13,668) (11,026)
55,499 45,054

d) Credit risk related to other financial assets and cash deposits:

Credit risk relating to the Group's other financial assets, principally comprising cash and cash equivalents and derivative
financial instruments, arises from the potential default of counterparties: Credit risk arising from balances with banks and
financial institutions is managed by the Group's finance department. Investment of cash and deposits are made only with
approved counterparties of high creditworthiness and are reviewed on a regular basis to take account of developments in
financial markets.

No material exposure is considered to exist by virtue of the possible non-performance of the counterparties to derivative
financial instruments and other receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Group holds no collateral as'security in relation to credit advanced to customers nor deposits held at banks.

e) Movement in the allowarice for expected credit losses

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Group ‘Group

.£'000 £'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 11,026 7,188

Impairment losses recognised 5,600 4,262

Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible (2,958) (424)

Balance at the end of the year 13,668 11,026
f) The value of trade receivables which are due or past due which are impaired:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Group Group

£'000 £'000

Between 90 arid 120 days ' 2,020 1,416

Greater than 120 days 9,491 10,551

11,511 11,967

g) Currency risk

The Group has financial liabilities which are exposéd to changes in market currency exchange rates. Changes in exchange
rates primarily impact borrowings by changing their future cash flows.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates. The $300m
bonds have been hedged using forward cross currency swap contracts, fixed until April 2023.

This coritract is designated as a cash flow hedge to eliminate the Group's cash flow exposure fesulting from variable rates
of exchange. The contractsettles on a half-yearly basis simultaneously with the interest settlement of the associated bonds.
£nil (2020: £nil) was recognised in the Income Statement in respect of ineffectiveness of the cash flow hedge arrangements:.
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19 Finandial instruments and risk management (continued)

h) Liquidity risk

The Group maintains a balance between availability of funding and maximising investment return on cash balances through
the use of shart-term cash deposits, credit facilities and longer term debt instruments. Management regularly reviews the
funding reguirements of the Group. The Group, has an additional liquidity facility totalling-£75m in ofder to miiriimise the
liquidity risk of the Group to its stakeholders.

This facility is available on demand with interest charged at SONIA-linked rates, plus a Credit Adjustment Spread (CAS),
fixed at the point of drawdown, and is unsecured. CAS is a transitional adjustment for conversion of existing contracts from
LIBOR to SONIA.

Maturity of financial assets and llabilities

The table below analyses the Group's financial assets and liabilities, which will be settled on a gross basis, into relevant
maturity grotps based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date,
The amounts disciosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2021 Weighted 0to3 3to12 ito5 >5vyears Total
average months months years
effective £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
interest rate
Loans and othef receivables Nil 142,337 - - - 142,337
Cash and cash equivalents 0.25% 31,496 - - - 31,496
Derivative mstfuments.m designated Nil } ; 22,509 ) 22,509
hedge accounting relationships
173,833 - 22,509 - 196,342
Trade and other payables Nil 156,403 - - - 156,403
Borrowings 3.47% - - 361,697 1,370,000 1,731,697
Fair value through profit and loss .
Lo . Nil - - - - -
derivative instruments
Lease liabilities 4.0% 222 474 425 1,015 2,136
156,625 474 362122 1,371,015 1,890,236
2020 Weighted ‘0to3 3to12 1to5 >5vyears Total
average months months years
effective £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
‘interest rate
Loans and other receivables Nil 116,057 - - - 116,057
Cash and cash equivalents 0.25% 5,359 - - - 5,359
Derivative instruments.m degg_nated, Nil } B _ 19,664 19,664
hedge accounting relationships
121,416 - - 19,664 141,080
Trade and other payables Nil 142,858 - - - 142,858
Borrowings 3.40% - - 439,495 1,370,000 1,809,495
Fa,lr.vvaliue t-hrough profit and loss Nil A } ) 50,754 50,754
derivative instruments :
Lease liabilities 4.0% 263 717 1,111 1,025 3,116
143,121 717 440,606 1,421,779 2,006,223

Commiitted borrowing facilities available
In addition to the £75m liquidity facility noted above the Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities at 31 December 2021
of £350m (2020 - £270m) which expire in September 2024.
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19 Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities . ‘

Set out below Is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments that aré carried in
the consolidated financial information.

31 December 31 December. 31 December 31 December

2021 2021 2020 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Loans and other receivables 142,337 142,337 *116,057 116,057
Cash and cash equivalents 31,496 31,496 5,359 5,359
Borrowings (1,731,697) (1,780,175) (1,809,495) (1,983,442)
‘Inflation Linked financial instruments - - (50,754) (50,754)
Cross currency financial instruments 122,509 22,509 19,664 19,664
Trade and other payables (156,403) (156,403) (142,858) (142,858)
Lease liabilities (1,280) (1,280) (2,191) (2,191)
(1,693,038) (1,741,516) (1,864,218) (2,038,165)

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

« cash and cash equivalénts, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables approximate to théir carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments;’ »

* the fair value of the net derivative financial instrument liability of £22.5m (2020 - £31.1m) is estimated using’ risk-adjusted
discounted future cash flow projections;

» provisions for cash payments are discounted back to their present value; and

« the fair value of derivatives are calculated using the method described in Note 19a. The Directors considered this and borrowings
to be a Level 2 valuation in the hierarchy set out in the Accounting Palicies in' Note 3, with'the valuation being based oh the discounted
value of expected future cash flows arising from the instrument.

20 Dividends
Company
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Amounts recognised as distributiornis to equity holders in the year:
interim dividend for the period énded 31 December 2021 of 140.26p {2020: 330,000 20,000
8.50p) per share:
330,000 20,000,
21 Capital and reserves
. 31 December 31 December - 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2020 2020
Share capital Number of £'000 Number of £'000
shares shares
Ordinary shares of £1: .
Authorised 235,273,194 235,273 235,273,194 235,273
Allotted, called up and fully paid 235,273,194 235,273 235,273,194 235,273

Merger reserve

The merger reserve has been created to reflect the difference between the shares issued by the Company and the shares acquired
as part of the acquisition of GTC Infrastructure Limited (and its subsidiaries) and The Gas Supply Company Limited via a share-fot-
share exchange in November 2012,
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21 Capital and reserves (continued)

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of infrastfucture assets in property, plant and equipment.

Cash flow hedge reserve '

The cash flow hedge réserve represents the cumulative amounts of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed -effective in
cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss 6n the hedging instrumentis recognised in profit or loss only when the hedged
transaction impacts the profit or loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item, consistent with the
applicable accounting policy.

22 Share-based payments
Equity settled LTIP share scheme

The Company operates a Long Term Incentive Plan {"LTIP") share scheme for cértaih employees of a subsidiary of the Company. The
awards to employees are in the form of non-voting growth shares in BUUK Infrastructure No 1 Limited. Shares are subject to a hurdle
based on a deérned market value of equity at the date of award plus other preferred equity. The vésting period for 1,453,282 of the
outstanding shares is 5 years, with 20% of the shares vesting each year on the anniversary of the grant date. The vesting period for
1,100,000 of the outstanding shares is 4 years, with 50% of the shares vesting on each of the 3rd and 4th anniversary's of the grant
date. There are no performance considerations attached to the shares. The shares are considered to be cash settied in the future as
the participating employees have the right to sell the shares to the immediate parent company once vested. The equity value is
computed by calculating an enterprise value of the BUUK Group and subtracting net debt and prior ranking securities. The equity
value has been used as an input into a Black-Scholes option pricing model to arrive at the Fair Market Value of the shares.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Number of shares Weighted Number of shares Weighted
average average exercise
exercise price price (£}
_ (6)
Outstanding at beginning of period 2,884,994 £0.32 1,986,763 £0.25
Awarded during period 186,854 £0.56 1,100,000 £0.43
Forfeited during the period - -
Exercised during the period (518,566) £0.20 (201,769) £0.19
Expired during the period - -
Outstanding at end of period 2,553,282 £0.37 . 2,884,994 £0.32
Vested at end of period 1,139,379 1,108,600

The shares outstanding.as at 31 December 2021 have.an average remaining contractual life of 1.9 years (2020: 2.2 years).

In 2021 186,854 shares were awarded on 21 May 2021. The fair market value of the shares awaided on that date was £0.56 per
share,

In 2020 1,100,000 shares were awarded on 26 March 2020. The fair market value of the shares awarded on that date was £0.43 per
share.

The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Weighted average share price £0.37 £0.32
Expected volatility 24% 32%
Expected life 1.91 years 2.16 years
Risk-free rate 0.60% 0.00%

Expected volatility was determined by benchmarking comparable companies in the UK utilities sector over the historical period that
matches the expected term of the shares. The expected life used in‘the model is based on management's best astimate. The group
recognised total expenses of £211,899 and £189,280 related to equity settled share-based payment transactions in 2021 and 2020
respectively.
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23 Capital commitments
At 31 December 2021, the Group had enteréd into contractual commitments for the construction of infrastructure assets

amounting to £536,392,000 (2020 - £592,850,000). The contractual obligation’s are éxpected to be constructed over the following
profile:.

Iifrastructuré Infrastructure

assets assets

‘31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

<1year 112,954 185,850
1-5 years ) 258,414 256,099
> 5 years ] 165,024 150,901
536,392 592,850

.24 Contingencies

Borrowings are secured by English law governed fixed and floatir;g security over the assets.of BUUK Infrastructure No 1 Limited,
BUUK Infrastructuré No 2 Limited, BUUK Infrastructure Issuer Pic, GTC Infrastructure Limitéd and certain other non-regulated group
companies, and Guernsey law governed security over the sharés.and related rights in GTC Infrastructure Limited.

25 Government grants
31 December 31 Deceinbér
2021 2020
‘Group Group
£'000 £'000
Government grants recognised in the Income Statement - 5,313

Government grants recognised relate to amounts. received for the Coronavirus Job Retentign Scheme and have been presented as
‘a deduction against wages.and salaries within cost of sales and other operating expenses inthHe Income Statement.

26 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between companies within thé Group which are related parties have been eliminated on consolidation
‘and are not-disclosed in this note,

Transactions with key management personnel
Key managemenit includes directors and members of the management team of the Group. The compensation paid or payable ta key
‘management foi employee services is.shown below:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£000 £'000

Salaries and other short-term benefits 5,907 3,951
Post-employment benefits 108 100
Total 6,015 4,051
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26 Related party transactions (continued)

Other related party transactions

During the year, Group companies enteréd into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Sale of goods Purchase of Sale of goods Purchase of

' goods goads

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Braeburn Estates Developments (Infrastructure) Ltd 103 - {273) -

The following amounts-were dutstanding at the statement of financial position date:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Payments made on behalf of - BUUK Infrastructure (Jersey) Limited 35 928
Receipts on behalf of - BUUK Infrastructure No 1 Limited {6,019) {9,223)
Amounts due from Braeburn Estates. Developments (Infrastructure) Ltd 106 65
Loan receivable - Brookfield Infrastructure Partners Capital Managemént SRL 15,000 5,000

All of the above companies are related parties due to sharing a common ultimaté parent company, being Brookfield Asset
Management Ing, a.company registered in Canada. Each related party transaction above has been undertaken on an arm’s-length
basis. Amounts outstanding are unsecured, and repayable on demand.

Unsecured non-interest bearing loans made to a director of £803,000 (2020: £698,000) were outstanding at the year-end. The loans
are repayable in between 1 and 5 years with £nil (2020: £nil) being repaid during the year. Unsecured non-interest bearing loans
madé to another director of £111,000 (2020: £111,000) were outstanding at the yeaf-end. The loans are Fepayable in between 1 and
S years with £nil (2020: £nil) being repaid during the year. Total loans made to directors of £914,000 (2019: £809,000) were
outstanding at the year-end with £nil (2020: £nil) being repaid during the year.

27 Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees. The scheme is a stakeholder
pension with the funds held within a discretionary trust by the scheme provider Scottish Widows. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to remit the appropriate employer and employee contributions within time limits
specified by the scheme.

The total cost charged to income of £5,452,908 (2020 - £4,884,146) represents contributions payable to the schéme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the plan. As at 31 December 2021, contributions of £61,678 (2020- £414,771) due in respect of the
current reporting period had not been paid over to the scheme:

28 Parent Undertakings and Uitimate controlling party

The parent company of BUUK Infrastructure No 2 Limited is BUUK Infrastructure No 1 Limited, a Company registered in Englarid and
Wiales. The ultimate controlling party is Brookfield Asset Management Inc, a company incorporated and registered in Canada quoted
on the New York Stock Exchange and Toronto Stock Exchange.

The smallest Group the Company is a member of and for which Group financial statements are prepared is Brookfield Infrastructure
Corporation. Copies of Brookfield Infrastructure Corporation’s financial statemerts .can be obtained from its registered office:
Brookfield Infrastructure Corporation, Suite 300, Brookfield Place, 181 Bay Street, Toronto, Canada, ON M5] 2T3.

The largest Group the Company is a member of and for which Group financial statements are prepared is Brookfield Asset
Management Inc. Copies of Brookfield Asset Mahagement Inc_'s financial statements can be obtained from its registered office:
Brookfield Asset Management Inc, Suite 300, Brookfield Place, 181 Bay Street, Toronto, Canada, ON M5J 2T3.
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29 Disposal of a subsidiary

The Group disposed of 100% of the shareholding of Smart Méter Assets 1 Ltd'on 12 May 2021. A gain was also recognised on receri:pt
of ‘additional consideration relating to the disposal of Independent Fibre Retail Limited on 18 Septefhber'2019;

Subsidiary disposed: '
Company Principal activity Date of Proportion of Considetation
disposal vating equity received
interests disposed
(%) £'000
‘Smdrt Meter Assets 1 Ltd Ownership and operation of 12 May 2021 100 589,048
smart utility meters.
589,048
Considération.received:
Smart Meter
Assets 1 Ltd
£'000
Cash consideration.for shares 589,048
‘Defeffed consideration <

589,048

Fair Value of assets'and liabilities disposed at the date of disposal:
: Smart Meter

Assets 1 Ltd
£'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 459,075
Goodwill 4 6,911
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ) 182
Trade receivables 7,672
Inventories 7,212
Cuirent liabilities
Trade payables (6,541)
Deferred Tax (29,474)
445,037
Gain oh disposal of & subsididry:
Independent Smart Meter Total
Fibre Retail Assets1Ltd
Limited : .
£000 £'000 £000
‘Consideration received - '589,048 589,048
Additional deferred considération received 175 : 175
Add: nét assets disposed of - (445,037) {445,037)
Less: €osts to-sell - (4,203) " (4,203)
175 139,808, 139,983
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29 Disposal.of a subsidiary-(continued)

Net.cash inflow on’ disposal of a subsidiary:

Cash consideration for shares

Deferred consideration received

Less: cash and cash eq‘uivaient balances disposed
Less:costs to sell

30 Leases

Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year

One to five years

Moré than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

Lease liabilities included in the Statement of Finaricial Position

Current
Non-current
‘Total lease liabilities

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflows for.leases

Termination options

Independent Smart Meter “Total
Fibre Retail Assets 1 Ltd
Limited

£000 £000 £'000

- 589,048 589,048

1,707 ; 1,707

- (182) (182)

{4,203) (4,203)

1,707 584,663 586,370

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
696 980
425 1,111
1,015 1,025
2,136 3,116.

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
661 912
619 1,279
1,280 2,191

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
980 1,054
980 1,054

Some leases contain termination options exercisable by the Group. Where: practicable, the Group.seeks to include termination
options to provide operational flexibility. The termination options held are exercisable by the Group and ot the lessors: Detdils of

‘the potential future lease payments in relation to termination options can be seenbelow:

Potential future lease payments fiot included in lease liabilities (discounted)

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
2,683 2,596
2,683 2,596
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31 Businéss Combinations

The Group acquired thetrade and assets of P,a‘ssi'\_/ Systernss Limited on 21 April 2021, including investments in Arto.Ehergy Limited
and Passiv Capital Limited.-Passiv UK Limited was incorporated in the year to undertaké this acquisition:

Deferfed consideration of £300,000, relating tc the 18 February 2020 acquisition of EPLR Holdings Limited was also paid in the year.

.Consideration transferred:

.Cash corisideration

Fair Value of assets acquired and liabilities recoghiséd at the date of acquisition:.

Non-current assets
Intangibles ]
Property, Plant and.equipment

Current assets

‘Stock and WiP:

Cash-and cash eqtivalents
Trade feceivablés

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Non-current liabilities
Externial horrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Total identifiable net assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition:

Consideration transferred '
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired

Passiv. UK
Limited
£'000

3,608
3,608

Passiv UK
Limited
consolidated net
assets

£'000

4,221
20

147
238.
5,365

(6,284)
(2,618)
(802)
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Passiv UK
Limited
'£'000

3,608
(287)

3,321

The_goodWilI is attributable to the workforce and expected future profitability of the acquired business. It will not be deductible for

‘tax purposes.

Net cash iniflow gn'acquisition:

EPLR Holdings Passiv UK
Limited Limited. Total
£'000 £'000, £'000
Cash-consideration : - 3,608 3,608,
Deferred-consideration 300 . 300
Less: Cash acquired - (238) (238)
300 3,370 3,670
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